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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Municipal Legislature
Municipality of Quebradillas
Quebradillas, Puerto Rico
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of
Quebradillas, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities
The Municipality has not recorded the total pension liability, deferred outflow of resources, deferred inflow
of resources and related pension expense required by Statement No. 73 of the Governmental Accounting
Standard Board, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within
the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provision of GASB Statement 67 and 68 in
the governmental activities. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require that the total pension liability, deferred outflow of resources, deferred inflow of resources, and
related pension expense be recorded, which would increase liabilities, increase deferred outflow of
resources, increase deferred inflow of resources, decrease net position and change pension expense in the
governmental activities. The amount by which this departure would affect liabilities, deferred outflow of
resources, deferred inflow of resources, net position and pension expenses has not been determined.
The Municipality has not implemented the requirement of Statement No. 75 of the Governmental
Accounting Standard Board, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Posremployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (GASB 75) as of for the year ended June 30, 2018. Accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require that net other postemployment benefit related liability, deferred
outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources, as applicable, be recognized in accordance with the
parameters established by Statement No. 75, as well as the effect of current period changes of the
aforementioned amounts that must be recognized in other postemployment benefit expense during the
current period. The amounts by which this departure would affect liabilities, deferred outflow of resources,
deferred inflow of resources, net position, and other postemployment benefit expense have not been
determined.
Qualified Opinion
In our opinion, except for the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental
Activities" paragraphs, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities of the Municipality of Quebradillas, as of
June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in the financial position thereof for the fiscal year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Unmodified Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of each major fund, business-type activities, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Municipality of Quebradillas, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in the
financial position and, where applicable, cash flow, thereof and for the fiscal year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Emphasis of Matters
Uncertainties Regarding Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Going Concern
The Municipality is an instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico ("the Commonwealth"). The
accompanying financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared assuming that the
Commonwealth will continue as a going concern. The Commonwealth and its components units currently
face severe fiscal, economic, and liquidity situations, including accumulated net position and fund balances
deficits, lack of access to financing, and difficulties in honoring its obligations as they become due. The
Municipality receives substantial operating funds from the Commonwealth in the form of
intergovernmental subsidies. The Commonwealth and its components units are currently tinder the
supervision of a Federal Oversight Board and are implementing fiscals plans approved by the Board in
order to remediate their situation. The financial statements of the Municipality do not include any
adjustment that might result from these uncertainties. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information Omitted
Management has omitted required supplementary information related to pensions standards and other
postemployment benefits that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements
is not affected by the missing information.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5 to 12 and 67 to 69 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements. The accompanying Financial Data Schedule, as
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required by U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, on pages 71 through 74, and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards on pages 76 to 77 are presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by Title 2 U. S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards, and they are not a required part
of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying Financial Data Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the Financial Data Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29,2019,
on our consideration of the Municipality of Quebradillas's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Municipality of Quebradillas's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Municipality of Quebradillas's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Municipality of Quebradillas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2018
The Municipality of Quebradillas (the “Municipality”) discussion and analysis has been designed
with the following goals:
a) Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues,
b) Provide an overview of the Municipality’s financial activity,
c) Identify changes in the Municipality’s financial position (its ability to address the next and
subsequent year challenges),
d) Identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and;
e) Identify individual fund issues or concerns.
Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current
year activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with
the Municipality’s financial statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Municipality net position increased by $3 million.
Capital assets decreased by $1 million.
Capital expenditures amounted to $349,618
General fund balance increased by $2.4 million.
Loans principal payments were $518,822
Expenditures excess revenues by $1,434,077 on the budgetary general fund
comparison.

.
USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the focus
from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a whole
(government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and
major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year
to year or government to government) and enhance the Municipality’s accountability.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial
statements with a broad overview of the Municipality’s finances in a manner similar to privatesector companies.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Municipality’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
-5-
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decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Municipality is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is focused on both the
gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the government’s general tax and
other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of cost of various
governmental services.
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the Municipality
from business-type activities that are intended to recover significant portion of their costs from
fees and charges. Governmental activities include general government, public safety, culture and
recreation, health and welfare and public work. The business-type activities include charges fees
to customers to finance the costs of their activities. The activities of Municipal Enterprise of
Economic Development of the Pirate City, Inc. (the only business-type activity) are general
operating expenses.
Fund Financial Statements
The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality’s most
significant funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind of fund
which is the governmental fund.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the
Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund Financial Statements focus on near
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the Municipality’s
near term financial requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements.
By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better understand the long-term impact
of the Municipality’s near term financial decisions. Both of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
-6-
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Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.
Infrastructure Assets
Historically, a government’s largest group of assets (infrastructure – roads, bridges, traffic signals,
underground pipes [unless associated with a utility], etc.) have not been reported nor depreciated
in government financial statements. GASB 34 requires that these assets be valued and reported
within the governmental column of the Government-Wide Statements. Additionally, the
government must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (b)
develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to
near perpetuity. If the government develops the asset management system (the modified
approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrates
its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record its
cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The information about the condition and maintenance
of condition of the government infrastructure assets should assist financial statement users in
evaluating a local government and its performance over time. The Municipality has elected to
depreciate infrastructure assets instead of using the modified approach.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE
Net Position
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The Municipality’s net position totaled $34.2 million at the end of 2018, compared to
$31.1 million at the end of the previous year.
The largest portion of the Municipality’s net position consists of the investment made throughout
the years in capital assets such as land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure. The Municipality
uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although, the Municipality’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from the Debt Service Fund, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities. The amounts restricted for debt service represents another portion of
the net position, and these are resources subject to external restrictions for the purposes
explained above.
The unrestricted fund balance is $6.1 million, during this year. The unrestricted deficit is the
consequence of previous budgets which did not provide funding for incurred long-term obligations
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such as compensated absences and claims and judgments among others. Historically, such
obligations have been budgeted on a pay as you go basis without providing funding for their future
liquidation. Consequently, the Municipality cannot draw from its existing assets to provide services
to its citizens and depends on its taxing ability to continue its operations. The restricted portion
consists of monies reserved for debt service and future capital expenditures.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Current assets
Capital assets
Total asse ts
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilites and deferred inflows or resources
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total ne t position

Change s
6,448,372
(1,091,052)
5,357,320
2,315,084
181,843
(163,723)
2,333,204

%
50%
-3%
12%

29,628,570
30,719,622
(1,091,052)
4,725,333
3,794,906
930,427
(85,610)
(3,270,351)
3,184,741
$ 34,268,293 $ 31,244,177 $ 3,024,116

-4%
25%
-97%
10%

$

2018
19,240,369
31,527,702
50,768,071
4,986,647
11,084,812
428,319
16,499,778

$

2017
12,791,997
32,618,754
45,410,751
2,671,563
10,902,969
592,042
14,166,574

$

87%
2%
-28%
16%

Changes in Net Position
The Municipality’s net position increased by $2.8 million, approximately 67 percent of the
Municipality's total revenue came from grants and contributions, including federal grants, while
30 percent resulted from taxes. The Municipality's expenses cover a range of services. The
largest expenses were for general government, public works and public housing and welfare.
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2018
Program revenues:
Charge for services
Operating Grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Municipal license tax
Sales and use taxes
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific programs
Interest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Extraordinary item
Total Revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total Expenses
Tranfer
Change in net position
Prior Period Adjustment
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

$

56,955
2,910,904

2017
$

206,223
4,117,758

Changes
$

%

(149,268)
(1,206,854)

-72%
-29%

2,366,318
795,444
961,797

3,468,810
769,708
1,397,996

(1,102,492)
25,736
(436,199)

-32%
3%
-31%

6,392,167
216,242
2,114,751
1,105,571
16,920,149

6,478,078
114,620
1,286,178
1,105,571
17,839,371

(85,911)
101,622
828,573
(919,222)

-1%
89%
64%
0%
-5%

7,065,050
678,376
1,156,666
3,180,269
1,341,646
403,036
13,825,043
3,095,106
54,332
31,118,855

8,443,305
1,450,219
4,340,220
2,872,937
429,151
395,851
17,931,683
(1,865,953)
(1,958,265)
33,077,120

(1,378,255)
(771,843)
(3,183,554)
307,332
912,495
7,185
(4,106,640)
1,865,953
5,053,371
54,332
(1,958,265)

-16%
-53%
-73%
11%
213%
2%
-23%
-100%
-258%
0%
-6%

34,268,293
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS
As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the Municipality’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Municipality’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality’s governmental funds reported a combined
fund balance of $13.3 million compared to a fund balance of $9.9 million in the prior year.
The general fund is included within the governmental funds; it is the chief operating fund of the
Municipality. As of June 30, 2018, the general fund has a fund balance of $8.5 million. The fund
balance increased by $2.4 million during fiscal year 2018.
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality’s budget to reclassify
certain expenditures among the different governmental functions. Such reclassifications were
necessary to provide for the developments that affected the Municipality’s finances.
The most significant variances between budget and actual results was actual higher
Intergovernmental revenues than budget.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The Municipality’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018, amounts to $47.3 million, net
of accumulated depreciation leaving a net book value of $31.5 million. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, intangibles, infrastructure and
construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value
only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar items.
- 10 -
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The total increase in the Municipality’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
about 0.19% in terms of net book value. Actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital
assets were $.349 million for the year. Depreciation charges for the year totaled $1 million.
The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond
issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are
committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As of
June 30, 2018, the Municipality has $2.7 million of unexpended proceeds from grants that are
committed to future construction activities.
The Municipality acquires capital assets during the fiscal year 2017-2018. Capital assets
acquired during the year were as follows:
•
•
•

Construction in progress $139,182
Building and building improvements retirements $1,747,500
Acquisition of equipment and vehicles $210,436

Other projects related to repair and maintenance of roads (not capitalized was development
during the year 2018.
Debt Administration
The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation
municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of
each municipality may be pledged.
The applicable law also requires that in order for a municipality to be able to issue additional
general obligation bonds and notes such municipality must have sufficient “payment capacity.”
Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient “payment capacity” to incur additional
general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality’s Redemption Fund and the annual
amounts collected with respect to such municipality’s Special Additional Tax (as defined below),
as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the municipality’s outstanding general
obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt (“Payment Capacity”).
The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such
amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes.
In addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on
all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued by
the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality’s Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the
- 11 -
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Municipality’s Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general
obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the
Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality’s Redemption Fund, are not
sufficient to cover such debt service. It has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay
debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES
The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to carry
out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very
predictable with increases of approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may vary if new
grants are available, but the revenue also is very predictable.
Those factors were considered when preparing the Municipality’s budget for the 2018-2019 fiscal
year.
FINANCIAL CONTACT
The Municipality’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers,
customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality’s finances and to
demonstrate the Municipality’s accountability. If you have questions about the report or need
additional financial information, contact the Municipality’s Interim Chief Financial Officer, Yamaris
Fuentes at the Financial Offices in the Central Town, Quebradillas, Puerto Rico.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash in bank (Notes 3 and 4)
Accounts receivable
Due from other agencies (Note 8)
Capital assets, net (Note 11)
Restricted assets:
Deposits with Governmental Bank (Notes 4
and 15)

$

Primary Government
Business-Type
Total Primary
Activities
Government

11,524,998
50,000
3,895,548
31,527,702

$

74,115

$

2,900,819

11,599,113
50,000
3,895,548
34,428,521

3,769,823

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other agencies (Note 13)
Accrued interest
Unearned revenues:
Municipal license taxes (Notes 7 and 9)
Noncurrent liabilities: (Note 12):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

3,769,823

50,768,071

2,974,934

53,743,005

1,834,777
2,371,822
226,429

59,295
68,373

1,894,072
2,440,195
226,429

553,619

553,619

613,822
10,470,990

613,822
10,470,990

16,071,459

127,668

16,199,127

428,319
428,319

-

428,319
428,319

29,628,570

2,900,819

32,529,389

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Federal grants
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

945,675
3,779,658
(85,610)
$

34,268,293

945,675
3,779,658
(139,163)

(53,553)
$

2,847,266

$

37,115,559

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Functions/Programs

Expenses

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Public work
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

$

Business-Type Activities:
Municipal Enterprise of Economic
Development of the Pirate City, Inc.
Total primary government

7,065,050
678,376
1,341,646
1,156,666
3,180,269
403,036
13,825,043

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Charges for
Grants and
Grants and
Services
Contributions
Contributions

Net (Expense) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position
Primary Government
Governmental
Business-Type
Activities
Activities

$

$

$

-

$

778,764

224,499
1,907,641
56,955

421,551
$ 14,246,594

56,955

224,499

2,686,405

336,738
$

393,693

(6,229,331)
(678,376)
(1,341,646)
(932,167)
(1,272,628)
(403,036)
(10,857,184)

$

-

$

224,499

$

2,686,405

$ (10,857,184)

General revenues:
Property taxes (Note 5)
Municipal license taxes (Note 6)
Sales and use taxes (Note 7)
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Interest, fines, and penalties
Miscellaneous
Extraordinary item:
Recovering of impairment loss on deposits with Governmental Bank
Total general revenues, transfer, and extraordinary item
Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year, as restated
Net position at end of year

$

(84,813)

(84,813)

$ (10,941,997)
2,366,318
795,444
961,797
6,392,167
216,242
2,114,751

1,105,571
13,952,290
3,095,106
31,173,187
34,268,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

$ (6,229,331)
(678,376)
(1,341,646)
(932,167)
(1,272,628)
(403,036)
(10,857,184)

(84,813)

2,366,318
795,444
961,797
6,392,167
216,242
2,114,751

$

- 14 -
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Total

(84,813)
2,932,079
$

2,847,266

1,105,571
13,952,290
3,010,293
34,105,266
$ 37,115,559

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets
Cash in bank (Notes 3 and 4)
Account receivable
Due from other agencies (Note 8)
Due from other funds (Note 10)
Restricted Assets:
Deposits with Governmental Bank
(Notes 2 and 5)
Total assets

General Fund

Debt Service
Fund

Health and
Human
Services Fund

$

$

$

8,949,304
50,000
1,510,690
507,685

11,720,517

37,899

$

16,095

702,838
$

887,956

Homeland
Security Fund
15,858

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

2,322,053

802,970
$

1,690,926

$

53,994

$

2,337,911

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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1,633,981

Total
Governmental
Funds

46,710
52,973

11,524,998
50,000
3,895,548
560,658

2,264,015

3,769,823

3,997,679

$

$

19,801,027

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2018

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Due to other funds (Note 10)
Due to other agencies (Note 13)
General obligations: (Note 12)
Bonds
Interest
Unearned revenues:
Municipal license taxes (Notes 7 and 9)
Total liabilities

General Fund

Debt Service
Fund

Health and
Human Services
Fund

$

$

$

-

53,994

$

1,643,876
265,716

$

30,046
187,975

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

518,822
226,429

Deferred Inflows of Resources (Note 9)
Federal grants
Total deferred inflows of resources
Fund Balances
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

160,855
52,973
2,371,822

Other
Governmental
Funds

Homeland
Security Fund

$

1,834,777
560,658
2,371,822
518,822
226,429

553,619
3,139,269

745,251

53,994

1,909,592

218,021

553,619
6,066,127

-

-

-

428,319
428,319

-

428,319
428,319

12,220
27,103
2,362,479
6,179,446
8,581,248

945,675

-

-

945,675

-

-

1,664,175
2,106,388
2,687
6,408
3,779,658

2,622,070
2,133,491
2,365,166
6,185,854
13,306,581

11,720,517

$

1,690,926

$

53,994

$

2,337,911

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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3,997,679

$

19,801,027

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Total fund balances - governmental funds

$

13,306,581

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:
• Capital assets, net, used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet.

31,527,702

• Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds.

(10,565,990)

Net position of governmental activities

$

34,268,293

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

General Fund
REVENUES
Property taxes (Note 5)
Municipal license taxes (Note 6)
Sales and use taxes (Note 7)
Licenses, permits, and other local taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental revenues (Note 11):
Federal grants and contributions
State contributions
Interest, fines, and penalties
Other revenues
Total revenues

$

1,805,548
795,444
463,139
58,626
20,590

Debt Service
Fund
$

Homeland
Security Fund

Other
Governmental
Funds

$

$

$

1,059,428

5,241,806
546,077
496,777
307,667
2,867,080

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

-

-

-

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

36,365

2,366,318
795,444
961,797
58,626
56,955

577,186
260,695
128,147
8,805
1,011,198

2,910,904
6,392,166
157,617
2,114,748
15,814,575

165,828
3,180
372,763
313,189

5,407,634
2,476,516
1,015,946
584,895
3,180,269

1,927,259

854,960

518,822
403,036
13,587,118

-

156,238

2,227,457

498,658

6,131,471
29,470
2,105,943
11,410,231

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Public works
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other
Total expenditures

560,770

Health and
Human
Services Fund

406,459

1,927,259

406,459

1,927,259

1,927,259
146,406
277,228

9,459,407

518,822
403,036
921,858

423,634

1,950,824

137,570

(17,175)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Recovery impairment loss on deposits (Note 15)
Total extraordinary item
Net change in total fund balances
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

`
$

166,351
(198,075)
(31,724)

198,075
(166,351)
31,724

-

-

-

500,676
500,676

604,895
604,895

-

-

-

1,105,571
1,105,571

2,419,776

774,189

(17,175)

-

156,238

3,333,028

6,161,472

171,486

17,175

-

3,623,420

9,973,553

8,581,248

$

945,675

$

-

$

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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$

3,779,658

364,426
(364,426)
-

$

13,306,581

General government
Public safety
Recreation
Public works
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities

$

42,775
53,468
85,549
887,573

$

1,069,365

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2018

Quebradillas's
City
Enterprises
Assets
Cash in bank (Notes 3 and 4)
Capital assets, net (Note 11)

$

Total assets

74,115
2,900,819
2,974,934

Liabilities and Net Position
Liabilities
Account payable
Due to agency

59,295
68,373

Total liabilities

127,668

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

2,900,819
(53,553)

Total net position

$

2,847,266

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
- 20 -

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Quebradillas's
City
Enterprises
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Total operating revenues

$

336,738
336,738

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Utilities
Sales and use taxes
Maintenance materials
Miscellaneous
Others
Depreciation (Note 11)
Total operating expenses

149,395
37,038
24,098
34,279
12,326
10,827
89,970
63,618
421,551

Operating loss

(84,813)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(84,813)

TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING

2,932,079

TOTAL NET POSITION, ENDING

$

2,847,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Quebradillas's
City
Enterprises
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees of services
Payment to suppliers
Net cash used in operating activities

$

336,738
(186,433)
(154,855)
(4,550)

NET DECREASE IN CASH

(4,550)

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

78,665

CASH AT THE END OF YEAR
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net position
Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Increase in accounts payable

$

74,115

$

(84,813)

63,618
16,645

Total adjustments

80,263

Net cash used in operating activities

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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(4,550)

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. Organization
The Municipality of Quebradillas, Puerto Rico (Municipality) was founded in 1823. The Municipality
is a political legal entity with full legislative and administrative faculties in every affair of the municipal
character, with perpetual succession existence and legal personality, separate and independent from the
central government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality provides a full range of
services including health, public works, environmental control, education, public safety, public housing
and community development, culture and recreation as well as many other general and administrative
services.
The Municipal Government comprises the executive and legislative branches. The executive power is
exercised by the Mayor, and the legislative by the Municipal Assembly, which has 14 members. The
members of these branches are elected every four years in the Puerto Rico general elections.
2. Financial Reporting Entity
The financial reporting entity included in this report consists of the financial statements of the
Municipality of Quebradillas (primary government) and organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable. A primary government is any state government or general
purpose local government (i.e. a municipality). All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies,
departments and offices that are not legally separate are, for financial reporting purposes, part of a
primary government. If an organization is part of a primary government, its financial information
should be included with that of the primary government. Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the primary government is financial accountable or organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity‘s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. A component unit can
be a governmental organization, a nonprofit corporation or a for-profit entity.
A primary government’s financial accountability for a legally separate organization is determined based
on the following criteria:
1. The primary government appoints a voting majority of the entity’s governing body, and either:
•
•

A financial benefit/ burden exist between the primary government and the entity or
The primary government can impose its will on the entity.

The entity is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is a financial benefit/burden
between the primary government and the entity.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Also, as indicated above, it would be necessary to include other organizations as component units if
their exclusion would cause the financial statements of the primary government to be misleading or
incomplete.
1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, or its
constituents.
2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to
otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization.
3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific
primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, are significant to the primary government.
Professional judgment should be applied in determining whether the relationship between a primary
government and other organizations for which the primary government is not financially
accountable and that do not meet the above criteria is such that exclusion of the organization would
render the financial statements of the reporting entity misleading or incomplete.
There are two methods of presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: (a)
blending the financial data of the component units’ balances and transactions and (b) discrete
presentation of the component unit’s financial data. When a component unit functions as an integral
part of the primary government, its data is blended with those of the primary government (“blended
component units”). That is, the component unit’s funds are treated just as though they were funds
of the primary government with one exception: the general fund. Component units should be
reported as blended if meets any of the following criteria:
1. The component unit’s governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of
the primary government and there is either:
•
•

A financial benefit/ burden exist between the primary government and the entity or
Management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the
component unit.

2. The component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary
government or otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary
government.
3. The component unit’s debt is expected to be paid by the primary government
- 24 -

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

4. Otherwise, the component unit should be presented as discrete. Those component units do
not function as an integral part of the primary government and its data is presented
discretely (separately) from the data of the primary government (“discretely component
units”). Legally separate, tax-exempt organizations that meet the special criteria should be
included as discretely component units.
Based on the above criteria, the Municipality’s Management has concluded that there are no other
potential component units which should be included as part of the financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2018.
3. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting and reporting policies of the Municipality conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), as applicable to governmental entities. The
Municipality follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements under the
hierarchy established by GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments, in the preparation of its financial statements.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis- This consists of a narrative introduction and analytical
overview of the Municipality’s financial activities. This analysis is similar to the analysis the private
sector provides in their annual reports
Basic Financial Statements- Basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund
financial statements. Both levels of statements categorize primary activities as governmental type,
which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
According to the financial reporting model established by GASB No. 34, the minimum required
financial statement presentation applicable to the Municipality is composed of the following elements:
(1) government-wide financial statements (GWFS), (2) governmental fund financial statements
(GFFS), (3) notes to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplementary information (RSI). RSI
consists of a (1) Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and a Budgetary Comparison
Schedule – General Fund, this is unaudited supplementary information required by GAAP presented
along with, but separate from, the Municipality’s basic financial statements. The MD&A is a narrative
report that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements and provides an analytical overview
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
of the Municipality’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018, based on the Municipality’s
knowledge of the transactions, events and conditions reflected in the basic financial statements. The
MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies that control the Municipality’s operations.
Government-Wide Financial Statements — The statement of Net position and the statement of activities
report information on all activities of the Municipality. The effect of interfund balances has been
removed from the government-wide statement of Net position (deficiency), except for the residual
amounts due between governmental and business-type activities. Interfund charges for services among
functions of the government-wide statement of activities have not been eliminated. The Municipality’s
activities are distinguished between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods
or services or interest earned on investment securities. Following is a description of the Municipality’s
government-wide financial statements.
The statement of net position presents the Municipality’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with
GAAP, with the difference reported as net position. Net position is reported in three categories:
•
•
•

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consist of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization, and reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other
debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets, if any.
Restricted net position result when constraints placed on Net position use are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted net position consists of Net position that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories. Unrestricted Net position often is designated, in order to indicate that
management does not consider them to be available for general operations. Unrestricted Net
position often has constraints on use that are imposed by management, but such constraints
may be removed or modified.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable within a
specific function. Program revenues include (1) interest income on loans and investments, changes in
the fair value of investments, and fees and charges to customers for services rendered or for privileges
provided and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Other items not meeting the definition of program revenues are
reported as general revenues.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Fund Financial Statements — Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.
A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The financial activities of
the Municipality that are reported in the accompanying basic financial statements have been classified
into governmental and enterprise funds.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and enterprise funds. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements, with non-major funds being combined into a single column.
Fund balances for each governmental fund are displayed in the following classifications depicting the
relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:
•
•
•
•
•

•

Nonexpendable — amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in a spendable form
(such as inventories and prepaid amounts) or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.
Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints
imposed by external providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of
government), or imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Committed — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the government’s highest level of decision-making Municipality.
Assigned — amounts the government intends to use for specific purposes that do not meet
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.
Unassigned — amounts that are available for any purpose.

Encumbrances – Encumbrances should not be displayed as a separate classification of
fund balance on the face of the balance sheet. For governments that use encumbrance
accounting, significant encumbrances should be disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements by major funds and non-major fund in the aggregate in conjunctions with
required disclosures about other significant commitments.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality’s policy to
use restricted resources first, and then, unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statements Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

- 27 -

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Governmental Funds Financial Statements — The governmental fund financial statements are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Municipality considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year. Principal revenue sources considered
susceptible to accrual include federal and Commonwealth funds to be received. Other revenues are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
Governmental Activities- Most of the Municipality’s basic services are reported here including: public
works and sanitation, public safety, culture and recreation, housing, welfare, and community
development, education and general administration. These activities are primarily finance through
property taxes, other local taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Included in the governmental
activities are the governmental funds.
Business-type Activities- Business-type activities charges fees to customers to finance the costs of their
activities. The activities of Municipal Enterprise of Economic Development of the Pirate City, Inc. (the
only business-type activity) are included here.
Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting include:
•
•

Interest on general long-term obligations is generally recognized when paid.
Debt service principal expenditures and claims and judgments are recorded only when
payment is due.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its governmenta1 funds within the
following categories:
General fund - The general fund is the Municipality’s main operating fund and a major governmental
fund, as defined below, used to account for all financial resources and governmental activities, except
for financial resources required to be accounted for in another fund. It is presumed that the
Municipality’s governmental activities have been reported in the general fund except for transactions
for which one of the following compelling reasons has required the use of another fund: (1) legal
requirements, (2) GAAP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial administration requiring
the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund.
Debt service fund - The debt service fund is a major governmental fund, as defined below, used by the
Municipality to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest
for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a
debt service fund and/or (2) bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is
being accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing in
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future years. Consistently with the prior fiscal years’ financial statement presentation, during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018, the financial activity accounted for in the debt service fund was specifically
related to bonds payable.
Health and Human Services Fund- This fund account for revenue sources to provide essential human
services such as improving maternal and infant health, pre-school education and services, prevent child
abuse and domestic violence, and medical and social science research including the prevention of the
outbreak of infectious disease and immunization services.
Special revenue funds - Special revenue funds are governmental funds, as defined below, used by the
Municipality to account for revenues derived from grants, contributions or other revenue sources that
are either self-restricted by the Municipality or legally restricted by outside parties for use in specific
purposes The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances
or federal and state statutes. However, resources restricted to expenditures for purposes normally
financed from the general fund are reported in the Municipality’s general fund provided that all
applicable legal requirements are appropriately satisfied. In this case, a special revenue fund to account
for such kind of transactions will be used only if legally mandated.
Capital projects funds - Capital projects funds are governmental funds, used to account for the
financial resources used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital facilities and
other assets. Significant capital outlays financed from proceeds of general obligation, public
improvement or special obligation bonds accounted for in the capital projects funds.
The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitions, construction
or improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately
from the other Municipality’s operating activities.
The focus of the GFFS is on major governmental funds, which generally represent the Municipality’s
most important funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is required to segregate governmental funds
between major and non-major categories within the GFFS. Major individual governmental funds are
reported individually as separate columns in the GFFS, while data from all non-major governmental
funds are aggregated into a single column, regardless of fund type.
By definition, the Municipality’s general fund is considered a major governmental fund for financial
reporting purposes. in addition, any other governmental fund would be classified as a major
governmental fund in the GFFS if: a) its total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of that
individual governmental fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element total (assets,
liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all governmental funds and b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues,
or expenditures of the individual governmental fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for
all governmental funds combined.
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In addition, funds that meet the major fund criteria, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the
government’s officials believe is particularly important to financial statement users (for example,
because of public interest or consistency) may be reported as a major fund.
For the purposes of applying the aforementioned major fund criteria, no eliminations of interfund
balances have been made. Total revenues for these purposes means all revenues, including operating
and non-operating revenues (net of allowances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing
sources. Total expenditures for these purposes mean all expenditures, including operating and nonoperating expenditures, except for other financing uses.
Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality’s major governmental funds reported in the
accompanying GFFS are: (1) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3) the capital improvements
fund, and (4) joint resolutions fund.
The Municipality periodically undertakes a comprehensive evaluation of its fund structure to ensure
that complies with all aspects that are of importance to users of general purpose external financial
reports. Consequently, all superfluous funds and some internal funds currently used by Municipality in
the day-to-day accounting procedures have not been reported as individual governmental funds in the
accompanying fund financial statements.
The accompanying GFFS are accompanied by the following schedules required by GAAP: (1) the
reconciliation of the balance sheet - governmental funds to the statement of net position, and (2) the
reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds to the statement of activities.
Notes to Financial Statements – The notes to financial statements provide information that is essential
to a user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) – The Required Supplementary Information consists of the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund.
Proprietary Funds- Proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as the business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Under this method of accounting, revenues are recorded when
earned, independently when are paid. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses
from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services
in connection whit a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the proprietary funds are charges to customer’s services. Operating expenses for the funds include
the cost of operations and maintenances, administration and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The
proprietary fund statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues and Changes
in Net Position and a Statement of Cash Flows.
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The Municipality’s proprietary funds consist of one enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise
where the intent is that the cost of providing good and services be financed or recovered primarily
through used charges. Major Enterprise funds are determined based on a minimum criterion, that is, a
percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses or based on the Municipality’s official’s
criteria of the fund is particularly important to financial statement users.
The Municipality reports the following major enterprise fund:
The Municipal Enterprise of Economic development of the Pirate City, Inc. (the Municipal Enterprise),
accounts for the operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises where the intent is that the cost of providing goods and services (including depreciation) be
financed or recovered.
The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund is a comparison of the actual results (using the
budgetary basis of accounting, which differs from GAAP) with the original budget and the final
amended budget for the General Fund. A budget to GAAP reconciliation is presented providing
information of differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and GAAP.
Budgetary Control
The Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual budgets each fiscal year for the
Municipality’s general fund and debt service fund. Such legally adopted budgets are based on expected
expenditures by program and estimated resources by source. The annual budgets are developed using
elements of performance-based program budgeting and zero-based budgeting, and include estimates of
revenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at the time
the budgets are prepared.
The Mayor must submit for the fiscal year commencing on the next July 1, an annual budgetary
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the Commonwealth (the
Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than May 10 and May 15, respectively. The
Commissioner preliminary verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable laws and
regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before June 13.
The Municipal Legislature has 10 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to discuss
and approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the budgets
submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without imposing taxes
or identifying other sources of revenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies
and preliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project is sent back to the Mayor for his approval
or rejection within 6 days. The Mayor may decrease or eliminate any line item but may not increase or
insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may also veto the budgets in their entirety and
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return it to the Municipal Legislature with his objections. If the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal
Legislature will have up to 8 days to adopt or reject the recommendations or objections of the Mayor.
The approved Project is sent again to the Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and approve it.
If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines referred to above, the annual budgets for
the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are automatically renewed for
the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgets. This
permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for its operations and other purposes until the new
budgets are approved.
The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end encumbrances,
and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal Legislature. The Mayor may
request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which are subject to the approval of the
Municipal Legislature.
The Municipality’s Department of Finance has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary spending
control is maintained. For day-to-day management control purposes, expenditures plus encumbrances
may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditure-type level of each cost center (activity within a
program within a fund). The Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within
funds. The Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts among programs within and among funds.
Budgetary Accounting
The Municipality’s annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of accounting,
which is not in accordance with GAAP.
According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash is received.
Short-term and long-term borrowings may be used to finance budgetary excess of expenditures over
revenues.
The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the appropriation prior to actual
expenditure. In the governmental funds, encumbrance accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary
control. Accordingly, expenditures are generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or
encumbered. Available appropriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after
the end of the fiscal year. Amounts required to settle claims and judgments against the Municipality,
and certain other liabilities, are not recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for
payment. Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other
appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal
Legislature has authorized that unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made
available for current spending.
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The accompanying schedule of revenues and expenditures - budget and actual - budgetary basis - general
fund, provides information about the general fund’s original budget, its amendments, and the actual
results of operations of such governmental fund under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018. The Municipality has not legally adopted a budget for the special revenue
and capital projects funds. Accordingly, it has not presented an annual comparison of budget and actual
for these major funds.
Deposits and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The Municipality is restricted
by law to invest only in savings accounts and certificates of deposit with banks qualified as a depository
of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or in instruments of the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).
Deposits with Governmental Bank in the capital projects fund consists of unused proceeds from
appropriations from the Legislative Assembly of Puerto Rico, for the payment of current liabilities, and
bonds and notes issued for the acquisition and construction of major capital improvements. Deposits
with Governmental Bank in the debt service fund represent special additional property tax collections
withheld by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the payment of the Municipality’s
debt service, as established by law.
The deposits at GDB of $2,8, restricted for capital projects, joint resolutions, other governmental funds,
and for debt service, are unsecured and uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by
governmental bank.
Restricted Assets
Restricted assets are liquid assets which have third-party limitations on their use. The Municipality
reports as restricted deposit with governmental bank the undisbursed proceeds of grants which are
maintained in a cash custodian account by the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico.
(“GDB”).
Accounts Receivable
Receivables consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2018. These accounts
receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined
based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic conditions and the periodic
aging of accounts receivable.
Activities among governmental funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the
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current portion of inter-fund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the non-current portion of
inter-fund loans), as applicable. All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”
Use of Estimates
The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Totals Column (Memorandum Only) Governmental Funds Statement
The total data under this column is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns
do not present financial position or results of operations in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Such data is not comparable to a consolidation, since Interfund eliminations have
not been made.
Inter-fund Activities
The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund activities recorded
among governmental funds in the accompanying GFFS:
Inter-fund loans Represent amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, which are recorded
as “due from” in the lender governmental fund and “due to” in the borrower governmental fund. Interfund receivables, which are not considered to be currently available financial resources, are reported as
advances. For amounts not expected to be collected within a reasonable period of time, inter-fund
receivables/payables are reduced to the estimated realizable value and the amount that is not expected
to be repaid is reported as an operating transfer from the governmental fund that made the loan.
—

Inter-fund transfers Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation of financial resources among
governmental funds) without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a requirement for
repayment.
—

Operating transfers are reported as other financing sources in the governmental fund making transfers
and as other financing sources in the governmental fund receiving transfers.
Inter-fund reimbursements — Represent repayments from the governmental fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to the governmental fund that initially paid for them.
In the GFFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP.
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Capital Assets
Capital assets used in governmental activities include land and land improvements, buildings, structures
and building improvements, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, vehicles, construction in
progress, and infrastructure. These assets are capitalized and reported in the accompanying statement
of net position. Infrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and include roads, bridges, streets
and sidewalks, drainage systems and other similar assets.
For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an individual
cost of $5,000 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or improvement, and with useful lives
extending beyond one year. All assets with individual costs under $5,000 or with useful lives not
exceeding one year, are charged directly to expense in the government-wide statement of activities. In
the governmental funds, all capital assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures).
In the statement of net position, all capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if
actual cost was unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Estimated historical costs based on deflated current costs were used to
value a significant portion of the infrastructure constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2002 and
certain lands, buildings, structures and building improvements.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement of net assets as
projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset
or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized.
Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the government-wide statement of activities.
However, there is no depreciation or amortization recorded for land and construction in progress.
Depreciable capital assets are generally depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful lives under
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of major capital asset categories are:
Description

Years

Buildings
Infrastructure
Building and site improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

20-50
20-50
20-50
5-20
5-20

Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the Municipality, if any, are reported at the lower
of carrying value or fair value. Impairment losses on capital assets with physical damages that will
continue to be used by the Municipality are measured using the restoration cost approach. Impairments
of capital assets that are subject to a change in the manner or duration of use, or assets affected by
enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in environmental factors or assets that
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are subject to technological changes or obsolescence, if any, are measured using the service units
approach.
Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one item, which arises
only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that may qualify for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet.
These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts
become available.
Intergovernmental Revenues
Intergovernmental Revenues in the general and capital projects funds consist mainly of collections from
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the CRIM, and payments in lieu of taxes from the Puerto Rico
Electric Power Authority.
On October 16, 2015, the Puerto Rico Commission of Energy (“CEPR”) approved the new guidelines
for the energetic subsidy (contribution) received by the 78 municipalities of the Commonwealth from
the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREPA) in lieu of the payment of municipal license taxes
(“CELI”). These guidelines limit to the subsidy to be received by the municipalities, by establishing a
maximum threshold amount of energy consumption charges that can be incurred by the municipalities.
Any charges in excess of that maximum threshold will be paid by the municipalities based on the
prevailing service rates in effect during the billing period. If the municipalities do not pay the amounts
billed, they are subject to a possible service cancellation by the PREPA.
Unearned revenues at the government-wide level arise only when the Municipality receives resources
before it has a legal claim to them.
In addition to these energy consumption limits, the CELI will not be applicable to every municipal
property or installation. It will only be available for those facilities used for the rendering of not-forprofit services to the community; for corporations that provide public health services; and for the
consumption charges incurred by the public lighting infrastructure. Those municipal installations and
properties used for for-profit activities or occupied by not-for-profit entities that do not provide
- 36 -

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

municipal services or by persons and businesses that are not municipal entities are excluded from the
CELI subsidy.
Finally, the guidelines require that the municipalities implement efficiency and conservation measures
for a reduction of 15% in the energy consumption to be incurred in the next three fiscal years. All of
these requirements are effective beginning July 1, 2016 (fiscal year 2016-17). The application of these
guidelines will result in an increase of the Municipality’s operating expenditures since the consumption
charges of the municipal facilities not covered by the CELI calculation and the amounts incurred in
excess of the energy consumption limits will have to be budgeted and paid with general fund resources.
Compensated Absences
Compensated absences are accounted for under the provisions of Statement No. I6, Accounting for
Compensated Absence, issued by GASB (GASB No. 16). Compensated absences include paid time off
made available to employees in connection with vacation, sick leave and compensatory time. The
liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net position is limited to
leave that: (1) is attributable to services already rendered on or before June 30, 2018 and (2) is not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Municipality’ and the employee (such
as illness). Compensated absences that relate to future services or are contingent on a specific event
outside the control of the employer or the employee are accounted for in the period when those services
are rendered or those events take place.
The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related costs, which are directly and
incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer’s share of Social
Security taxes and Medicare taxes).
The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations at a rate of
2.5 days per month (30 days per year) per employee. Employees accumulate regular sick leave at a
rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days per year). Employees accumulate compensatory time at a rate of
1.5 times the overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess
of 30 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to employees each year, if not consumed, as required by
law. In the case of compensatory time, the excess of 240 hours is paid to employees each year, if not
consumed.
Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid
regular vacation leave at the current rate. In the case of regular sick leave, if the employee terminates
his or her employment before reaching 10 years of services, such regular sick leave is not paid to the
employee, if not consumed. In addition upon termination of employment, an employee does not receive
compensation for compensatory time, if not consumed previously. After 10 years of services, any
regular sick leave balance is paid to the employee. Accumulated vacation time is fully vested to the
employee at any time.
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The liability for compensated absences is reported in the statement of net position. A liability for
compensated absences is reported in the GFFS only when matured (when payment is due), for example,
as a result of employee resignations or retirements.
Long-term Debt
The long term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net position include the
Municipality’s bonds payable, notes payable, accrued compensated absences, and accrued legal claims
and judgments if any.
All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as liabilities in the
accompanying statement of net position. Principal and interest payments on bonds due on July 1, 2018
are recorded as governmental Fund liabilities in the GFFS (debt service fund) when resources are
available in the debt service fund (June 30, 2018). In the GFFS, the face amount of debt issued (gross
debt reported) is reported as other financing sources when issued.
Operating Leases
The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under several operating lease
agreements, which generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed for the same
terms. Management believes that the summary of the future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable real property and equipment lease with terms exceeding one year is not significant.
Accounting for Pension Costs
Effective on July 1, 2017, the Municipality and other participants of the ERS converted to a new
“PayGo” model. Under the “PayGo” funding, the participant employers directly pay the pension
benefits as they are due rather than attempt to build up assets to pre-fund future benefits. “Paygo”
payments are recorded as expenditures\expenses in the financial statements.
At that date, the Municipality’s pension costs accounting transitioned from GASB Statement No. 68
to the requirements of GASB Statement No. 73 “Accounting and Financial Reporting For Pensions
and Related Assets That Are Not Within The Scope of GASB No. 68”. Accordingly, pension costs are
reported based on the employer total pension liability, pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows
of resources reported by the ERS. For purposes of measuring, pension costs have all been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the ERS.
Accounting for Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”)
GASB Statement No. 75 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions” is effective for the Municipality starting on July 1, 2017. As required by the accounting
pronouncement, OPEB transactions should be accounted based on its proportional share of the
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collective net OPEB liability, OPEB expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources reported by
the Plan. For purposes of measuring, OPEB costs should have all been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the Plan. The ERS has not issued its 2017 basic financial statements, nor has it
provided to the Municipality with the required information to implement the referred accounting
pronouncement. The Municipality’s contribution for OPEB is included as part of the “Paygo” charges
billed on a monthly basis by the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury (“PRDT”). “Paygo” payments
are recorded as expenditures\expenses in the financial statements.
Risk Management
The Municipality carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses.
Insurance policies are negotiated by the Commonwealth’s Department of Treasury (the Department of
Treasury) on behalf of all municipalities of Puerto Rico. The Department of Treasury pays the insurance
premiums on behalf of the Municipality and then is reimbursed each year through monthly equal
payments deducted from the Municipality’s gross property tax collections made by the Municipal
Revenue Collection Center (“CRIM”, by its Spanish acronyms), a governmental entity responsible for
billing and collecting property taxes on behalf of all municipalities of Puerto Rico.
The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile
accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation Administration
(ACAA), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This insurance is compulsory for all licensed
vehicles used on public roads and highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is $35 per licensed
motor vehicle, which is paid directly to ACAA.
The Municipality obtains workers’ compensation insurance coverage through the State Insurance Fund
Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth. This insurance covers workers against
injuries, disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, or because of illness
suffered as a consequence of their employment. Workers’ compensation insurance premiums are also
paid through monthly deductions made by CRIM from the Municipality’s gross property tax
collections.
The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers’
insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs administered by the
Commonwealth’s Department of Labor and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover
workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary
disability, or death because of work or employment-related accidents or because of illness suffered as
a consequence of their employment. Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and
drivers’ insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.
The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance companies for
its employees. Different health insurance coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by
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the Department of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality. The current insurance policies have not been
canceled or terminated at June 30, 2018.

Future Adoption of Accounting Pronouncements — The GASB has issued the following
statements:
•

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligation, which is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2019.

•

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2019.

•

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2020.

•

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements, which is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2019.

•

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period, December 15, 2019.

•

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statement No.
14 and No. 61, which is effective for period after December 15, 2018.

Management is evaluating the impact that these statements will have on the Municipality’s basic
financial statements.
4. Credit Risk
The following is essential information about credit risk, interest rate risk, custodial credit risk, and
foreign exchange exposure of deposits and investments of the Municipality at June 30, 2018:
Credit risk This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. In compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the
Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the Statement of Uniform Investment
Guidelines for the Municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, issued by the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico. Accordingly, the Municipality is only allowed to invest in
obligations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, obligations of the United States of America,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances or in pools of obligations of the
Municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB. According to the aforementioned
investment guidelines, the Municipality is not allowed to invest in marketable securities or any other
type of investments (debt securities) for which credit risk exposure may be significant. Consequently,
—
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at June 30, 2018and for the fiscal year then ended, the Municipality invested only in certificates of
deposit in commercial banks, which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC),
generally up to a maximum of $250,000 per depositor. No investments in debt of equity securities were
made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Therefore, the Municipality’s management has
concluded that the credit risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on
the Municipality’s deposits is considered low at June 30, 2018.
Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to declines in fair values
by: (1) not including debt or equity investments in its investments portfolio at June 30, 2018, (2) limiting
the weighted average maturity of its investments in certificates of deposit to periods of three months or
less and (3) keeping most of its banks deposits and certificates of deposit in interest bearing accounts
generating interest at prevailing market rates as required by the Statement of Uniform Investment
Guidelines for the Municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, issued by the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (the adopted policy of the Municipality). At June 30, 2018, the
interest rate risk associated with the Municipality’s cash and cash equivalent is considered low since
the investment portfolio of the Municipality consists of certificates of deposit and do not include debt
securities or any type of investments that could be affected by changes in interest rates.
.

Custodial credit risk — In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Municipality’s deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the Statement of Investment Guidelines for
the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the balances deposited in commercial banks by
the Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up to a
maximum of $250,000 per depositor. In addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the
Municipality are fully collatera1ized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository
insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held in the Municipality’s name by the agents of the
Commonwealth’s Secretary of Treasury. Deposits of GDB, are uninsured and uncollateralized.
However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the
Municipality through June 30, 2018. It is management’s policy to only maintain deposits in banks
affiliated to FDIC to minimize the custodial credit risk, except for GDB.
Therefore, the Municipality’s management has concluded that at June 30, 2018, the custodial credit risk
associated with the Municipality’s cash and cash equivalents is considered low.
Foreign exchange risk This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the value
of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, adopted by the
Municipality, the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of
investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly, management
has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the Municipality’s deposits is considered low at
June 30, 2018.
—
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5. Property Taxes
The personal property tax is self-assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by May 15 of
each year with the CRIM, a governmental entity created by the government of Puerto Rico as part of
the Municipal Governmental Autonomy Laws of August 1991. Real property tax is assessed by the
CRIM on each piece of real estate and on each building.
The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal property
and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on personal property must be paid in
full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two installments by
July I and January 1. The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal
property taxes on behalf of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal
year, the CRIM informs the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be
collected for the ensuing fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality
based on the initial estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement
statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the
Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This settlement has to be completed on a
preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final settlement made not later
than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to the Municipality property tax advances, which
are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if
advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, deferred revenue is recorded at June 30.
On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain a loan up to
$200 million, and for a term not exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing of the debt that the
Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property tax
advances compared to actual collections through fiscal year 1999-2000. The amounts that the
Municipalities will collect from the additional property taxes resulting from the increases in the subsidy
from the Central Government to the Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan.
The increase in this subsidy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 1999.
On December 3, 2002, the Municipality entered into an agreement with the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico for the repayment of excess property tax advances. As of June 30, 2018, the related unpaid
property tax advances presented in the statement of net position amounted to $142,200 and is payable
in periodic installments as determined by the CRIM in a 30 years period until July 1, 2032, at variable
interest rate (Law 42 of 2000 as ammended by law 146 of 2001).
Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property taxes
on the first $15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto Rico Treasury
Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property assessed at less
than $3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the
exempt amount to be paid by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the Municipalities was frozen as
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of January 1, 1992. In addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property
taxes of up to $50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $150,000.
The annual tax rate for fiscal year 2017-2018 is 9.83% for real property and 7.83% for personal property
of which 1.03% of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 8.80% and 6.80%, respectively,
represents the Municipality’s basic property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and accounted for
in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a
percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a subsidy from the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1.67%
represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund. The
Commonwealth also contributes an annual tax rate of 0.2% of the Property tax collected and such
amount is accounted for similar to item (a) above.
Property tax revenues in the general and debt service funds amounted to $1.8 million and $560,771
respectively, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
6. Municipal License Taxes
The Municipality is authorized to impose and collect municipal license taxes to any natural or legal
person having trade or business activities within the territory of QUEBRADILLAS. This is a selfassessed tax generally based on the business volume of taxpayers, measured by gross revenues. The
Municipality establishes the applicable tax rates. At June 30, 2018, the municipal license tax rates
imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for financial institutions and 0.50 percent for other
types of taxpayers.
Each taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume of business
through a tax return to be filed every April 15, based on the actual volume of business (revenues)
generated in the preceding calendar year. Taxpayers with a sales volume of $3 million or more must
include audited financial statements with their tax return filings. The tax can be paid by the taxpayer in
two equal installments due on July 15 and January 15, subsequent to the filing of the declaration on
April 15. The first installment of the tax covers the six-month period ended December 31, subsequent
to the filing date of the declaration, while the second installment of the tax covers the six-month period
ended June 30 of the subsequent calendar year. If a taxpayer elects to pay the tax in full on the filing
date of the declaration (generally April 15), a 5 percent discount is granted automatically on the total
tax amount due. Municipal license tax revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 amounted to
$795,444 in the accompanying financial statements.
Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) are recorded
as unearned revenues. Unearned municipal license tax revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS
and GFFS amounted to $553,619 at June 30, 2018. This amount represents the municipal license taxes
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corresponding to fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 that were collected in advance during the last quarter
of the current fiscal year, as required by law.
7. Sales and Use Taxes
The Municipality imposes a sales and use tax pursuant to the provisions of the Puerto Rico Internal
Revenue Code, as amended. The tax consists of one percent (1.0%) on the sales price of taxable items
or on the purchase prices of all usage, storage, or consumption of taxable items, excluding wholesales.
The sales and use tax is a self-assessed tax collected by the Municipality through monthly tax returns
due on the twentieth day of the immediate following month. The tax returns are filed by the respective
businesses that are required by law to withhold the tax from consumers on each taxable product or
service. Sales and use tax revenues amounted to $463,139 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.
The commonwealth of Puerto Rico imposes a separate state sales and use tax of 0.5%, which is imposed
and collected by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department through monthly tax return due on the twentieth
day of the immediate following month. This 0.5% tax is administered by the Government Development
Bank of Puerto Rico for the following purposes: (1) 0.2% is deposited in the new “Municipal Debt
Service Fund”, strictly for granting loans to the municipalities of Puerto Rico; (2) 0.2% for the creation
of the “Municipal Development Fund” percentage, which will be distributed among all municipalities
pursuant to a statutory formula; and (3) 0.1%, for the creation of the “Permanent Improvements Fund”,
to be distributed by the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to carry out public works and
permanent improvement projects in the municipalities of Puerto Rico.
8. Due from Other Agencies
Represents grants and contributions due from local and federal agencies:

Governmental
Funds

Governmental
Wide

$

$

General Fund
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority
CRIM

1,185,303
325,387
1,510,690

1,185,303
325,387
1,510,690

Health and Human Services Fund
Administration for Children and Family (Early Head Start
Program)
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Health and Human Services Fund
Central Office of Recovery and Reconstruction of PR
(FEMA Program)

$

2,322,053
2,322,053

$

2,322,053
2,322,053

Other Governmental Funds
"OPPEA" - Special Program for the Aging
Administration for Children and Family (ESG Program)

36,250
10,460
46,710
$

3,895,548

36,250
10,460
46,710
$

3,895,548

9. Unearned Revenues
Unearned revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS and the GFFS are as follows:
a. General Fund:
Deferred revenues of $553,619 in the general fund is related to municipal license tax collected in
fiscal year 2017-2018 that will be earned in fiscal year 2017-2018.
b. Other Governmental funds:
Federal Government – The unearned revenues of $428,319 presented in other governmental funds
represent the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not been
incurred.
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10. Interfund Transactions
a. Due From/To Other Funds:
The due from and due to other fund balances as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Receivable Fund

Payable Fund

Amount

General
General
Other Governmental
General

Other Governmental
Homeland Security
General
HHS

$ 187,975
265,716
52,973
53,994
$ 560,658

The balance of $52,973 due to the general fund from the Other Governmental Fund represents
amount due from prior years related to state contributions’ grants. Remaining transfers are used to
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
b. Interfund Transfers:
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Transfer In
General
Debt Service

Transfer Out
Debt Service
General

Amount
$

166,351
198,075

$

364,426

The transfer are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget revenues to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt
services from the fund collection to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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11. Capital Assets
Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of five years or more from the time of acquisition by
the Municipality and a cost of $5,000 or more, are primarily funded through the issuance of long-term
bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring in current year, including those
changes for infrastructure and construction in-progress pursuant to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Balance
June 30, 2017

$

1,193,925
26,270
1,220,195

Increases

$

139,182
139,182

Decreases

Balance
June 30, 2018

$

$

-

1,193,925
165,452
1,359,377

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvement
Buildings and building improvements
Equipment
Work of arts
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total capital assets, being depreciated

1,552,433
35,696,872
1,397,270
22,000
3,132,679
5,812,748
47,614,002

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvement
Buildings and building improvements
Equipment
Work of arts
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation

1,173,494
7,831,876
1,286,415
16,500
2,744,554
3,162,604
16,215,443

81,584
175,758
1,069,365

1,376,195

1,216,713
7,128,177
1,382,723
16,500
2,826,138
3,338,362
15,908,613

31,398,559

(858,929)

371,305

30,168,325

32,618,754

$ (719,747)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

$
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1,552,433
33,949,372
1,607,706
22,000
3,132,679
5,812,748
46,076,938

1,747,500
210,436

210,436

1,747,500

43,219
672,496
96,308

1,376,195

$

371,305

$

31,527,702
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows:

General government
Public safety
Recreation
Public works
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities

$

42,775
53,468
85,549
887,573

$

1,069,365

Business-Type Activities
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Balance
June 30, 2017

$

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building
Total capital assets, being depreciated

40,000
40,000

Business-type activities assets

$

$

-

3,180,896
3,180,896

-

256,458
256,458
2,924,438

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Increases

2,964,438

$

Decreases

Balance
June 30, 2018

$

$

-

40,000
40,000

-

3,180,896
3,180,896

63,619
63,619

-

320,077
320,077

(63,619)

-

2,860,819

(63,619)

$

-

$

2,900,819

Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Municipality continually evaluates its long-lived assets to determine whether current events and
circumstances warrant adjustment to the carrying values or amortization periods. The Municipality
measures impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. In performing the review for recoverability and estimated of the
future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and its eventual disposition must be made.
If the sum of the future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest changes) in less than without
interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the assets, and impairment loss is recognized. Based
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on its review, the Natural Disaster Hurricane María on September 20, 2017 caused several damage to
some assets of the Municipality and financial performance was significantly affected. The financial
statements include $1.7 million for building and improvement damages.
Given the effects of this natural disaster on commercial activity in Quebradillas, both the Municipal
Administration and the Central Government have implemented measures to support entrepreneurs,
recognizing that a large percentage of them are not in a position to comply with the payment of taxes and
other obligations to the government. These measures include the granting of waivers, payment plans,
extensions and exemptions in some lines of taxes. Conversely, Central Government measures have also
been implemented to support consumers. These include exempting small and medium merchants from the
collection and payment of the sales and use tax, as well as the sale of prepared foods.
Measures taken by the Central Government, although may facilitate the process of recovery of
employers and consumers of our City; represent a considerable reduction in municipal revenues.
As a result of the devastating effects of Hurricane María, the Municipality requested federal financial
assistance to FEMA under the Community Disaster Loans Program (CDL), which provides loans with
favorable terms and conditions to any eligible governmental applicant who demonstrate, among other
things, that: (1) suffered a substantial loss of at least five percent (5%) of its tax revenues as a direct
result of a major disaster and (2) has need for financial assistance to compensate for the substantial
revenue losses that currently, or in the near future, could limit the capability and power to continue
performing its governmental functions in a normal way while the recovery efforts continue.
On February 2018, the Municipality presented to the consideration of FEMA a request for a $5 million
loan under the CDL Program of which the final eligible amount would be determined by FEMA and
will be set at the lowest between the following amounts; (a) $5,000,000, (b) twenty-five percent (25%)
of the operational budget of the general fund (operating budgetary fund) and other applicable fund for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 (excluding the debt service expenditures and capital outlays from
the calculation of 25% of the budget, and (c) the estimated quantifiable loss of revenues determined by
the Municipality and validated by FEMA.
In the loan is approved, its term would be five (5) years and could be extended to ten (10) years at the
request of the Municipality, subject to the approval of FEMA. The interest rate on the loan would be
determined by the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States of America on the date of the signing
of the promissory note. This interest rate would be similar to that used in other obligations of the
Treasury of the United States of America, adjusted to the nearest 1/8 percent. The Municipality will
issue a promissory note to FEMA and/or the United States Treasury. In the event that the Government
of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico cannot participate as a consigner in the promissory note, the
Municipality must present and adequate collateral to guarantee the repayment of the loan to be
determined by FEMA.
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12. Long-terms debts
The Municipality’s Legislature is legally authorized to determine the contracting of debts of the
Municipality. Nevertheless, the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth also provide that:
a. direct obligations of the Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds and notes) are backed by the
full faith, credit and taxing power of the Municipality; and
b. direct obligations are not be issued if the amount of the principal of, and interest on, such bonds
and notes (and o all such bonds and notes issued thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year,
together with any amount paid by the Municipality in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds
or notes guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed 10 percent of the total assessed value of the
Municipality’s property.
There is not legal limitation on the amount of debt that the municipality may guarantee so long as the
10 percent limitation is not exceeded. At June 30, 2018, the Municipality is in compliance with the
debt limitation requirements.
Bond and other long-term liabilities outstanding at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

$570,000 series of 2002, payable in annual installments of $10,000 to
$50,000 until July 1, 2026, interest from 2.7% to 5.6%.

$

315,000

$2,000,000 series of 2001, payable in annual installments of $20,000 to
$175,000 until July 1, 2026, interest from 5% to 7%.

1,180,000

$638,800 series of 2002, payable in annual installments of $10,700 to
$49,200 until July 1, 2027, interest from 5% to 7.5%.

376,500

$670,000 series of 2003, payable in annual installments of $10,000 to
$50,000 until July 1, 2028, interest from 5% to 7.5%.

415,000

$2,135,000 series of 2005, payable in annual installments of $65,000 to
$165,000 until July 1, 2024, interest from 4.37% to 6.5%.

995,000

$455,000 series of 2004, payable in annual installments of $15,000 to
$35,000 until July 1, 2024, interest from 3.27% to 6.5%.

210,000
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$1,110,000 series of 2008, payable in annual installments of $25,000 to
$10,000 until July 1, 2027, interest from 6.48% to 7.5%.

$

745,000

$1,710,000 series of 2010, payable in annual installments of $25,000 to
$145,000 until July 1, 2034, interest from 6% to 7.5%.

1,450,000

$100,000 series of 2010, payable in annual installments of $5,000 to
$20,000 until July 1, 2026, interest from 6% to 7.5%.

60,000

$3,635,000 series of 2012, payable in annual installments of $55,000 to
$310,000 until July 1, 2036, interest from 6% to 7.5%.

3,255,000

Total bonds and notes payable

$ 9,001,500

Other Long-Term Liabilities
Note Payable to CRIM (Law No. 42) - Represents a repayment
agreement with GDB and CRIM to repay the excess of property
taxes advances from fiscal years up to 2001. The CRIM will retain
the principal and interest from the property taxes advances. The
amounts retained by CRIM will be remitted to GDB on July 1 of each
year through 2032. The repayment agreement is payable in annual
aggregate principal installments of $15,024 plus interest rate of
6.19%.

$

142,200

Compensated absences – Includes accrued vacations, sick leave
and other benefits with similar characteristics such as compensatory
time; represents the Municipality’s commitment to fund such costs
from future operations. Amount is paid with unrestricted funds.

1,231,346

ASES – Represents the amount due to Puerto Rico Health Insurance
Administration for medical claims from previous years.

401,750
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AEE - This amount represents the invoices payable as of June 30,
2018 for the Municipality’s properties that are excluded from the
contribution in taxes (CELI) in accordance with the new guidelines
for the energy subsidy of the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority
(“PREPA”). The Municipality is in the appeal process because the
Municipality understands the invoices of these Municipality’s
properties should also be covered in the CELI.

$ 238,516

Claims and judgments – Represents estimated losses of legal
cases to be paid subsequent to June 30, 2018. The awarded amount,
if any, will be paid with unrestricted funds.

69,500

Total other long-term liabilities

$ 2,083,312

Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds and notes payable are as follows:

Bonds
Principal
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038

Notes Payable
Principal
Interest

Interest

$

275,000
295,000
310,000
325,000
350,000
1,395,000
545,000
280,000

$

172,959
165,866
153,107
139,717
143,956
509,265
212,437
21,375

$

237,900
249,700
266,600
293,700
310,900
1,732,700
1,035,000
1,100,000

$

265,301
263,981
252,171
239,366
255,876
1,091,151
608,937
173,250

$

3,775,000

$ 1,518,682

$

5,226,500

$

3,150,033
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Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance

Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
Bonds payable
Notes payable

$

Total long-term debts

Additions

4,035,000
5,437,700

$

9,472,700

Ending
Balance

Payments

-

$

$

3,775,000
5,226,500

$

270,000
237,900

471,200

9,001,500

507,900

148,122

5,922

142,200

5,922

Claims and judgments

107,500

38,000

69,500

AEE

240,633

240,633

238,516

234,246

401,750
1,231,346

100,000

518,801

2,083,312

105,922

Other Long-term Liabilities:
CRIM - Law 42

ASES
Compensated absences

238,516

401,750
1,465,592

Total other long-term liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities,
governmental activities

-

260,000
211,200

Due within
One Year

$

2,363,597

238,516

11,836,297

$ 238,516

$

990,001

$

11,084,812

$

613,822

At June 30, 2018, accrued interest payable on bonds and notes amounted to $226,431, which is
reported in the debt service fund and the statement of net position.
13. Due to Other Agencies
Represents due to local and federal agencies for the year ended June 30, 2018 as follows:
Governmental
Activities
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority
Puerto Rico Water and Sewer Authority
Retirement System
Department of Labor
General Services Administration
Department of Treasury
Employee Assocition (AEELA)
Total

Business-Type
Activities

Total

$

1,185,303
423,009
544,603
117,588
68,615
23,010
9,694

$

68,373

$ 1,185,303
491,382
544,603
117,588
68,615
23,010
9,694

$

2,371,822

$

68,373

$ 2,440,195
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14. Commitments and Contingencies
a. Federal and State Grants
The Municipality receives Federal Grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under the
terms of the grants, management believes that any required reimbursements would not be material.
The Municipality is a defendant and/or co-defendant in various lawsuits which claims for actual
damages. Some of these lawsuits are covered by insurance. The Municipality’s management and
outside counsels believe that is probable that any potential liability that might exist, if any, in excess
of the insurance, will not affect significantly the finanical position of the Municipality.
b. Operating Leases
Leasing arrangement with the Municipality as lessor:
•

The Municipality leases spaces in its Market Place under operating lease agreement with terms
ranging from one to five years.

•

Total income from leases during the year ended June 30, 2018 was approximately $12,362.

•

The Municipality retains title to its leased property. The lessee pays taxes, licenses, insurance
and maintenance costs of the leased assets.

Leasing arrangements with the Municipality as lessee:
The Municpality leases office space and office equipment under operating leases agreements,
which generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed for the same terms.
Management believes that the summary of the future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable equipment leases with terms exceeding one year is not significant.
c. Construction
The Municipality of Quebradillas has several planned construction projects as of June 30, 2018.
These projects are evidenced by contractual commitments with contractors. The construction
projects are commitments of the Loans and Bonds fund that amounted to approximately $2,245,849
The Municipality intends to honor these encumbrances, which will continue to be liquidated under
the current year’s budget during a lapse period that extends into the subsequent fiscal year.
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The Municipality has reserved funds for outstanding construction projects amounting to
approximately $2.2 million at June 30, 2018.
The Municipality receives financial assistance from the federal Governments of the United States
of America and the Commonwealth in the form of grants and entitlements. Receipt of grants is
generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and
applicable federal laws and regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible
purposes.
Accordingly, expenditures financed by these programs are subject to financial and compliance
audits by the appropriate grantor. Disallowance as a result of these audits may become liabilities
of the Municipality.
15. Deposits in Governmental Development Bank for Puerto Rico
The Governmental Development Bank for Puerto Rico (“Bank” or “GDB”) has traditionally served as
interim lender to the Commonwealth and its public corporations (also referred to herein as
instrumentalities) and municipalities in anticipation of the issuance of long term bonds and notes by
such entities in the municipal bond market. The Bank has also provided financing to the Commonwealth
and its instrumentalities to finance their respective budget deficits, collateral requirements under swap
agreements and to meet mandatory payments of obligations. As a result of this lending function, the
Bank traditionally served as the principal source of short term liquidity for the Commonwealth, its
public corporations and municipalities.
Deposits in GDB
As of June 30, 2018 the Municipality had the following cash and certificates of deposits in GDB:
Fund
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Total

Amount
$
$

2,264,015
887,956
3,151,971

Certificates of deposits in GDB are carried at cost based on the requirements of Statement No. 31 of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 31) “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools”. Management of the Municipality believes,
even with the uncertainty surrounding the ability of the GDB to continue as a going concern, the cost
basis remains the appropriate basis of accounting for such deposits based on the fact that the provisions
of GASB 31 imply but do not mandate the recognition of the unrealized loss. Management of the
Municipality has also evaluated if a contingency exist in the Deposits in GDB based on the requirements
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of Statement No. 62 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB 62) “Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements” paragraphs 96 to 110.
Management believes that the existence of the contingency is reasonably possible but not probable at
this time and that there is no sufficient information to reasonably estimate such contingency, if any.
Accordingly, Management of the Municipality has concluded that no contingency needs to be recorded
as of June 30, 2018.
16. Pension Plan
General description
The Municipality is a participating employer in a retirement plan administered by the Employee’s
Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a trust created
by the Commonwealth’s Legislature. ERS covered all regular full-time public employees working for
the executive and legislative branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities of Puerto Rico
(including mayors); the firefighters and police of Puerto Rico and employees of certain public
corporations not having their own retirement systems. Prior to July 1, 2013, the system operated under
the following benefits structures:
•

Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951 (“Act 447”) effective on January 1, 1952 for members hired up to
March 31, 1990,

•

Act No. 1 of February 16, 1990 (“Act 1”) for members hired on or after April 1, 1990 and ending
on or before December 31, 1999,

•

Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999 (which amended Act 447 and Act 1) for members hired from
January 1, 2000 up to June 3, 2013.

Employees under Act 447 and Act 1 are participants of a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
plan. Act 305 members are participants under a pension program known as System 2000, a hybrid
defined contribution plan. Under System 2000, there was a pool of pension assets invested by the
System, together with those of the current defined benefit plan. Benefits at retirement age were not
guaranteed by the Commonwealth and were subjected to the total accumulated balance of the savings
account.
Effective on July 1, 2013, Act No. 3 of 2013 (“Act 3”) amends the provisions of the different benefits
structures under the ERS. Act 3 moves all participants (employees) under the defined benefit pension
plans (Act 447 and Act 1) and the defined contribution plan (System 2000) to a new defined
contribution hybrid plan. Contributions are maintained by each participant in individual accounts.
Credits to the individual accounts include: (1) retirement benefits accrued and savings account balances
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under the provisions of Act 447, Act 1 and System 2000 as of June 30, 2013; (2) contributions made
by all members of ERS after June 30, 2013; and, (3) the investment yield for each semester of the fiscal
year.
Benefits Provided
Eligibility for retirement: Act 3 establishes the following retirement eligibility requirements: (1) Act
447 regular employees upon attaining a range between 59 to 61 years (depending of date of birth) and
10 years of creditable service, (2) Act 1 employees upon attaining 55 years with 30 years of creditable
service, (3) System 2000 regular employees upon attaining a range between 61 to 65 years (depending
of date of birth) and, (4) Act 3 employees hired after July 1, 2013 upon reaching 67 years. High risk
employees (state and municipal police, firefighters and custody officials) under Act 447 and Act 1 will
be eligible at 55 years with 30 years of creditable service, for System 2000 employees at 55 years of
service and for Act 1 employees hired after July 1, 2013 upon reaching 58 years.
Accrued benefits: All members are entitled to a lifetime annuity based on the balance of the deferred
contribution individual account at the time of the retirement calculated based on a factor that will
incorporate the individual’s life expectancy and a rate of return. For Act 447 and Act 1 active
participants, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 2013 were frozen, and thereafter, all future
benefits accrue under Act 3 plan.
These participants will receive a pension at retirement age equivalent to what they have accrued under
Act 447 and Act 1 up to June 30, 2013 plus the lifetime annuity corresponding to contributions made
to the individual account after July 1, 2013 as described above. Act 447 participants, except police and
mayors, may elect to coordinate coverage with Social Security benefits (“Coordinated plan”). Under
this option, participants are subject to a benefit recalculation upon attainment of the Social Security
Retirement Age. For all members, if the balance of the defined contribution individual account is less
than $10,000, the amount shall be paid as a lump sum instead of an annuity. Effective July 1, 2013, the
minimum monthly pension amount for members who retired or disabled before July 1, 2013 is $500.
Termination benefit: Members are eligible to a lump sum payment of the defined contribution
individual account as of the date of the permanent separation of service upon termination of service
prior to 5 years of service or if the balance of the defined contribution individual account is less than
$10,000.
Deferred retirement: Members are eligible at the applicable retirement eligibility age to a lifetime
annuity based on the balance of the deferred contribution individual account plus the accrued benefit
as of June 30, 2013 (for Act 447 and Act 1 members) upon termination of service with 5 or more years
of service (10 years of creditable service for Act 447 and Act1 members) but prior to the applicable
retirement eligibility, provided the member has not taken a lump sum withdrawal from the defined
contribution individual account.
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Death benefits: For non-retired members, their designated beneficiaries will receive a refund of the
balance of the deferred contribution individual account plus the accrued benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for
Act 447 and Act 1 members). For pensioned members retired prior to June 30, 2013, the annual income
to a widow or widower or dependent children is equal to 60% of the retirement benefit payable for life
for a surviving spouse or disabled children and payable until age 18 or age 25 if pursuing studies for
non-disabled children. For pensioned members retired after June 30, 2013, payments to beneficiaries
will be the excess, if any, of the balance of the deferred contribution individual account plus the accrued
benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for Act 447 and Act 1 members) over the total annuity payments paid to
the member and any beneficiaries.
Disability benefits: Members who are permanently separated from service due to total and permanent
disability, due to disability pursuant to Act No. 127 of June 27, 1958, as amended, or due to terminal
illness, as determined by the Administrator, shall be entitled to the balance of the deferred contribution
individual account in a lump sum, or through the grant of an annuity, or any other optional form of
payment pursuant to Section 5-110 of Act No. 447, at the option of the participant, plus the accrued
benefit as of June 30, 2013 (for Act 447 and Act 1 members) at the applicable retirement eligibility age.
Beginning on June 30, 2013, no disability pensions shall be awarded pursuant to Sections 2-107 thru
2-111 of Act No. 447.
A disability benefits program is established which shall provide a temporary annuity in the event of
total and permanent disability. Disability benefits may be provided through one or more disability
insurance contracts with one or more insurance companies authorized by the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance of Puerto Rico to conduct business in Puerto Rico. The determination as to
whether a person is partially or totally and permanently disabled shall be made by the insurance
company that issues the insurance policy covering the participant.
Special laws and pensioner additional benefits: The Municipality is required to cover other retirement
benefits of its retired employees (if retired prior to July 1, 2013) as required by Commonwealth’s laws,
including: (1) various special laws – ad-hoc cost of living allowance adjustments (COLA) provided in
prior years; (2) various special laws –additional minimum pension benefits and, (3) Act 3 retired
pensioners “Additional Benefits Program”. All of these other retirement benefits are applicable only to
employees who retired prior to July 1, 2013 under Act 447 and Act 1. The “Additional Benefits
Program” includes: (1) a medication bonus of $100 per member which shall be paid no later than July
15 of each year; (2) a Christmas bonus of $200 per member which shall be paid no later than December
20 of each year and, (3) a matching share of $1,200 for healthcare insurance plan. These costs are billed
by ERS and paid by the Municipality through the “Paygo” system.
Retirement systems reform
Act No. 106 of August 23, 2017 (“Act 106”) was enacted to reform the Commonwealth retirement
systems and, among other dispositions, provide the necessary legal and operational structure of the
determination and payment of accrued pension benefits as of June 30, 2017, the creation and transition
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to a new defined contribution plan and the reform of ERS’s governance and administration, effective
on July 1, 2017. Those dispositions are summarized as follows:
Determination of accrued pension benefits as of June 30, 2017 and payments
Effective July 1, 2017 participants ceased to accrue new pension benefits and are no longer able to
make direct credit payments or to make additional contributions to the ERS. The ERS created and will
maintain, for each participant or actual beneficiary, an individual record as of June 30, 2017 which
includes the accrued pension benefits, employment history and accumulated contributions made. All
benefits including retirement, disability, death, and other pensioner additional benefits were determined
in accordance to the specific benefit structures under Act 447, Act 1, Act 305 and Act 3 and will be
paid based on the information provided in the individual record. The accrued pension benefits will be
funded through:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The net proceeds of the sale of ERS’s assets,
A pay-as-you-go (“PayGo”) charge to the participant employers determined by ERS and billed by
the PRDT,
Commonwealth’s legislative expenditure appropriations,
Donations by any public or private entity,
25% of first or periodic payments on public-private partnership contracts,
Other funds determined by the Commonwealth’s Legislature.

On June 27, 2017 the PRDT issued the Circular Letter No. 1300-46-17 to communicate to the
Commonwealth, the Municipalities and other participants of the ERS the conversion procedures to a
new PayGo model, effective on July 1, 2017. Under the PayGo funding, the participant employers
directly pay the pension benefits (including other special laws and additional pensioner benefits) as
they are due rather than attempt to build up assets to pre-fund future benefits. This funding method
allows the retirement systems to continue to pay benefits even after the plans’ assets have been
exhausted. In addition, as a result of the implementation of PayGo funding, employers’ contributions
related to additional uniform contributions were eliminated. Payments are made by the employers (the
Municipality) through a government treasury single account (TSA) maintained on a separate trust under
the custody of PRDT. TSA funds are deposited and maintained in a private commercial bank. It is
expected that, as the ERS’s assets become depleted, the PayGo charge will increase. On July 20, 2017
ERS sold investments for approximately $297 million.
Act 106 includes penalties and specific procedures for collection of unpaid PayGo charges. Each
beneficiary, participant or pensioned will have personal collection rights against every incumbent, head
of agency, director of budget or finance or any officer with responsibility at government, public
enterprise or municipality to claim unpaid contributions starting on the effective date of the Act and
demand that they be paid as required. For municipalities, it authorized a legal lien of property tax to be
collected by the CRIM through the monthly advances. During the fiscal year 2017-2018, the
Municipality was billed and recorded as PayGo expenditures the amount of $697,684, of which
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$544,603 was recorded as due to Commonwealth Government as of June 30, 2018. See related Note
13.
Creation and transition to a new defined contribution plan
General - Effective July 1, 2017, a new defined contribution plan (“DC Plan”) is created and maintained
in a separate trust. It covers all active participants of the ERS as of that date and participants enrolled
in the public service after that date. The Retirement Board (as discussed later) is responsible for
oversight of the DC Plan; the PRDT currently serves as the trustee and custodian of the DC Plan’s
assets, which are deposited in a private bank account. The transition to the new DC Plan is currently in
process. In accordance with Act 106 requirements, the Retirement Board is evaluating proposals to
appoint a plan administrator which will perform recordkeeping and management functions for the DC
Plan, including the development and adoption of a plan document, effective July 1, 2019. The transition
includes the creation of a separate trust and the transfer of participant accounts.
Participant accounts and contributions - Funds are maintained in individual accounts for each
participant which are credited with participant’s pre-tax contributions and investment earnings.
Participants are required to contribute at least 8.5% of gross salary. The Plan provides for voluntary
additional pre-tax contributions as permitted by the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code of 2011 (“2011
PR Code”). After July 1, 2019, participants may direct the investment of their contributions into various
investment options offered by the DC Plan.
Payment of benefits - Upon termination of service a participant or the participant beneficiaries may
elect to receive an amount equal to the value of the participant’s interest in his or her account in a lumpsum amount, maintain his or her account in the DC Plan, or roll-over their account to a qualified plan
under the 2011 PR Code. Upon participant’s death the account balance will be distributed to its
designated beneficiaries. Distributions are subject to income tax in accordance with the provisions of
the 2011 PR Code. For participants of the DC Plan with accrued pension benefits as of June 30, 2017,
benefits will include amounts of participant’s interest in his or her account plus accrued pension benefits
funded through the PayGo system.
Reform of ERS’s governance and administration
Act 106 creates a Retirement Board composed of thirteen (13) members (government officials,
representatives of teachers, judicial system, public corporations and mayors) which replaces the Board
of Trustees and perform overall governance of all retirement systems, including ERS, the Teachers and
Judiciary Retirement Systems. ERS’s employees that are not retained under the new administrative
structure will be transferred to public agencies in conformity to Act No. 8 of 2017.
Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions; other required disclosures under GASB Statement No. 73
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As discussed above, pursuant to Act 106, participants ceased to accrue new pension benefits and are no
longer able to make direct credit payments or to make additional contributions to the ERS. In addition,
benefit payments are made through a PayGo funding system, a TSA account under the custody of PRDT
and maintained in a separate trust fund. Plans operated under various benefit structures prior to July 1,
2017 are administered by the new Retirement Board through a trust fund that do not meet the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 68 as of July 1, 2017. Instead, the employers may be subject to
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 73, “Accounting and Financial Reporting forPensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68”.
However, as indicated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of the independent auditors’ report,
the ESR has not provided to the Municipality the audited actuarial and financial information necessary
for the proper recognition and reporting of its total pension liability as of June 30, 2018. As a result,
management has not been able to implement the accounting and financial reporting requirements for
pensions that are provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers through pension
plans trusts that do not comply with the criteria set forth in the GASB Statement No. 73. The effects of
this departure from U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in the assets, liabilities, deferred
outflows/inflows of resources and net position of the Municipality’s governmental activities cannot be
determined at this time.
17. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Plan description
The Municipality is a participating employer in the Employee’s Retirement System of the Government
of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities Medical Insurance Plan Contribution (“ERS-MIPC”). ERS
MIPC is an unfunded, cost sharing, multi-employer defined benefit plan sponsored by the
Commonwealth. Substantially all fulltime employees of the Commonwealth’s primary government,
and certain municipalities of Puerto Rico and certain component units of the Commonwealth not having
their own postemployment benefit plan, are covered by the OPEB. Commonwealth employees became
members upon their date of employment. Plan members were eligible for benefits upon reaching the
pension benefits retirement ages.
Benefits provided
ERS MIPC covers a payment of up to $100 per month to the eligible medical insurance plan selected
by the member provided the member provided the member retired prior to July 1, 2013 (Act No. 483,
as amended by Act No. 3).
Contributions
The contribution requirement of ERS MIPC is established by Act No. 95 approved on June 29, 1963.
This OPEB plan is financed by the Commonwealth on a pay-as-you-go basis. The funding of the OPEB
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benefits is provided to the ERS through legislative appropriations each July 1 by the Commonwealth’s
General Fund for former government and certain public corporations without own treasuries
employees, and by certain public corporations with own treasuries and municipalities for their former
employees. The Municipality’s contribution is financed through the monthly Paygo charge. There is no
contribution requirement from the plan member during active employment. Retirees contribute the
amount of the healthcare insurance premium not covered by the Commonwealth contribution. As a
result, these OPEB are 100% unfunded. The legislative appropriations are considered estimates of the
payments to be made by the ERS for the healthcare benefits throughout the year.
OPEB liabilities, OPEB expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB; other GASB Statement 75 required disclosures
The ERS have not issued its audited financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017 nor has it provided the Municipality with the audited schedules of employment allocations and
OPEB amounts by employer as of June 30, 2017 (Municipality’s measurement date), necessary to
comply with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 75 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”, as of June 30, 2018. As a result, amounts to be
reported as deferred outflows \inflows of resources related to OPEB, the net OPEB liability, applicable
disclosures and required supplementary information have been omitted.
18. Subsequent Events
On July 14, 2017, the Financial Oversight and Management Board for Puerto Rico (Oversight Board)
created by Congress authorized the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) to pursue
the restructuring of its debts under Title VI of PROMESA and conditionally certified GDB’s
Restructuring Support Agreement (RSA) under the relevant provisions of Title VI.
The Oversight Board’s decision was in response to a Fiscal Agency and Financial Advisory Authority
(FAFAA) request, dated June 30, 2018, in which the agency noted that the proposed restructuring,
along with certain related settlements contemplated by the RSA, will result in an efficient wind down
of GDB’s operations and a comprehensive financial restructuring of GDB’s obligations. FAFAA noted
further that by proceeding under Title VI of PROMESA with the requisite creditor support, GDB
believes that it will realize its objective of maximizing value for its stakeholders, while avoiding the
delay, expense and uncertainty associated with litigation.
The RSA provides for the organized and consensual restructuring of a substantial portion of GDB’s
liabilities, including GDB public bonds, deposit claims by municipalities and certain non-public entities
and claims under certain GDB-issued letters of credit and guarantees (Participating Bond Claims). In
exchange for releasing GDB from liability relating to these claims, the claim-holders will receive new
bonds to be issued by a new entity (the Issuer).
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Due to the effects of the hurricanes, loss of communication, impairment to municipal revenues and
liquidity, and the impact to GDB real estate owned assets, FAFAA, GDB and the RSA Requisite
Bondholders agreed on revising certain milestones. They agreed on certain amendments to the RSA
structure (Amended RSA) resulting in:
•

Simplified structure (one security offered to Participating Bond Claims instead of original three).

•

All municipal deposits will be applied against corresponding municipal loans to provide cash flow
relief to municipalities to mitigate near-term impact of hurricanes.

The RSA Summary are as follow:
•

RSA is consistent with the previously certified GDB Fiscal Plan, as it contemplates the conclusion
of the orderly wind-down of GDB and a Title VI Qualifying Modification for the restructuring of
GDB’s Participating Bond Claims.
RSA contemplates dividing GDB’s assets into (i) the Recovery Authority for the benefit of
bondholders, municipal depositors, and non-government entity depositors, and (ii) the Public Entity
Trust (PET) for the benefit of other Government Entity Depositors.

•

GDB will continue to exist as a legal entity for the purpose of resolving (i) outstanding legal matters
and claims that exist or may be asserted by or against GDB and (ii) certain public entity loans that will
remain at GDB and for which GDB shall have a contractual duty to the Recovery Authority to use
commercially reasonable best efforts to maximize proceeds and transfer such proceeds, if any, to the
Recovery Authority.

•

GDB and the PET will be pre-funded at the time of closing of the Restructuring (as defined in the
RSA) and will not require further financial assistance from the Recovery Authority, the PET or the
Government.

•

Prior to the closing of the Restructuring, the Amended RSA will simplify the GDB restructuring
transaction while simultaneously providing additional relief to municipalities as they recover from
the severe damage and devastation caused to Puerto Rico and its municipalities in the wake of
Hurricanes Irma and María. The amendment to the RSA provides that, upon consummation of the
transaction, each municipality will be authorized to apply the full amount of deposits held at GDB
against the balance of any loan owed by such municipality to GDB. Additionally, to provide
municipalities with immediate liquidity, the amendment to the RSA gives each municipality the
opportunity to receive immediate payment, before consummation of the transaction, of 55% of such
municipality’s undisbursed certified Excess CAE held at GDB in exchange for releases. The other
45% should be apply against the balance of any loan owed by such municipality to GDB.
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•

The amendment also results in a simplified structure whereby GDB’s financial creditors will
exchange their claims for only one tranche of new bonds at an upfront exchange ratio of 55%. The
RSA amendment is available on the Electronic Municipal Market Access website.

Management and Trust Structure Summary
•

On or prior to the closing of the transaction, pursuant to the terms of the RSA and the GDB
Restructuring Act, each as amended, available cash will be distributed as follows: Approximately
(i) $21 million for payment to certain municipalities of the Excess CAE Settlement; (ii) $27.2
million for estimated operating cash and contingency requirements of GDB; (iii) transaction cost
(including legal and professional fees and contemplated settlements); $1.5 million for estimated
operating cash requirements of the PET; and (v) distributable cash to the Recovery Authority
(~$324 million). All amount subject to change.

•

Upon closing of the Restructuring ng, GDB will transfer the servicing of the Recovery Authority
assets (or the New Bond Collateral) to a third-party servicer approved by GDB.

Also, the Oversight Board requires a New Fiscal Plan that was approved on November 26, 2018.
•

The Plan is based on the projected performance of GDB’s existing loan asset portfolio, based on
recent historical results.

•

Based on the assessment of GDB’s loan portfolio and the information available post-Hurricanes
Irma and María, the Plan assumes currently performing municipal loans (after the corresponding
application of municipal deposits against municipal loans), certain public-sector loans, and the sale
of real estate owned assets are the only sources of revenue going forward.

•

To the extent a loan asset is “non-performing”, the Plan assumes such loan remains “nonperforming” and therefore would not be a source of future inflows, although GDB, or any successor
entity, reserves the right to pursue collection efforts, subject to the limitations imposed by the GDB
Restructuring Act.

•

The Plan assumes the continued orderly sale or other legally available disposition of real estate
owned assets, until such assets are transferred to the Recovery Authority per terms of the RSA.

•

GDB has segregated approximately $22 million in cash, corresponding to GDB’s obligations to
former GDB employees that retired pursuant to various pre-retirement and voluntary separation
programs. Promptly after the certification of the Plan, GDB shall transfer such funds to a new trust
to be constituted by GDB for the benefit of said retired employees, releasing GDB from such
obligations.
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19. Restatement of 2017 Financial Statements
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Municipality noted that certain liabilities had been
overstated. As a result, the net position at June 30, 2017, as previously reported, were increase by:

Net
position
Beginning balance at June 30, 2017
Liabilities cancelled

$ 31,118,855
54,332

Beginning balance, as restated June 30, 2017
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Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUES
Property taxes
M unicipal license taxes
Sales and use taxes
Licenses and permits
Charges for services and rent
Intergovernmental revenues:
State contributions
Interest, fines, and penalties
Other revenues

$

1,525,358
757,816
600,000
150,000
42,000

$

Variance with
Final BudgetPositive
(Negative)

Actual Amounts
(Budgetary Basis)
(S ee Note 1)

1,525,358
757,816
600,000
150,000
42,000

$

1,722,644
757,022
463,139
58,626
28,660

$

197,286
(794)
(136,861)
(91,374)
(13,340)

5,644,075
11,000
260,000

5,644,075
11,000
260,000

5,807,678
17,240
1,120,623

163,603
6,240
860,623

Total revenues

8,990,249

8,990,249

9,975,632

985,383

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation
Health and welfare

5,022,426
633,932
2,454,873
467,560
411,458

5,692,774
560,894
2,572,109
421,073
373,399

5,310,041
546,511
2,554,378
398,017
362,608

382,733
14,383
17,731
23,056
10,791

8,990,249

9,620,249

9,171,555

448,694

-

630,000

630,000

-

Total expenditures
OTHER FINANCING S OURCES
Reprogramming funds

Excess of revenues over expenditures

$

-

$

-

$

1,434,077

Explanation of Differences:
Sources/Inflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Net change in receivables
T otal revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total changes to appropriations" from the budgetary comparison schedule
Differences - budget to GAAP:
Prior year encumbrances recorded as current year expenditures for GAAP basis
Net change in payables
Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes
T otal expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances

See notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule.
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$

1,434,077

$

9,975,632
1,434,599

$

11,410,231

$

9,171,555
(36,879)
230,549
94,182

$

9,459,407
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NOTE 1 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
a. Budgetary Control
The Municipality prepares its annual budget for all of its operations and activities. Such legally adopted
budget is based on expected expenditures by the program and estimated resources by source. The
annual budgets are developed using elements of performance-based program budgeting and zero-based
budgeting, and include estimates of revenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws
and regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared.
The Mayor must submit, for the fiscal year commencing on the next July 1, an annual budgetary
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the Commonwealth (the
Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than May 10 and May 15, respectively. The
Commissioner preliminarily verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable laws and
regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before June 13.
The Municipal Legislature has ten (10) business days, but not later than June 13, to discuss and approve
the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the budgets submitted by the
Mayor but may not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without imposing taxes or identifying
other sources of revenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies and
preliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project is sent back to the Mayor for his approval or
rejection within 6 days. The Mayor may decrease or eliminate any line item but may not increase or
insert any new line item in the budgets. The Mayor may also veto the budgets in their entirety and
return it to the Municipal Legislature with his objections. If the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal
Legislature will have up to 8 days to adopt or reject the recommendations or objections of the Mayor.
The approved Project is sent again to the Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and approve it.
If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines refined to above, the annual budgets for
the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are automatically renewed for
the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgets. This
permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for its operations and other purposes until the new
budgets are approved.
The annual budget may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end encumbrances,
and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal Legislature. The Mayor may
request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which are subject to the approval of the
Municipal Legislature. The Municipality's Department of Finance have the responsibility to ensure
that budgetary spending control is maintained. For day-to-day management control purposes,
expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditure-type level of
each cost center (activity within a program within a fund). The Mayor may transfer unencumbered
appropriations within programs and among funds. The Municipal Legislature may transfer amounts
among programs within and among funds.
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The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is at the functions/program level (general government, public safety, urban affairs,
culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic development, education, and
capital outlays) within the general fund. Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the
appropriations made for any fiscal year shall not exceed the total revenues, including available surplus,
estimated for said fiscal year unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is
provided.
b. Budgetary Accounting
The Municipality's annual budget is prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of accounting, which
is not in accordance with GAAP. According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally
recorded when cash is received, except in the case of municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30
but pertaining to the next fiscal year are recorded as revenue in the following budget year. Borrowings
may be used to finance budgetary excess of expenditures over revenues.
The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the appropriation prior to actual
expenditure. In the governmental funds, encumbrance accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary
control. Accordingly, expenditures are generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or
encumbered. Available appropriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after
the end of the fiscal year. Amounts required to settle claims and judgments against the Municipality,
and certain other liabilities, are not recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for
payment.
Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly
capital projects appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current
spending.
The accompanying supplemental budgetary comparison schedule - general fund provides information
about the general fund's original budget, its amendments, and the actual results of operations of the
general fund under the budgetary basis of accounting for the ensuing fiscal year. At June 30, 2018, the
Municipality has outstanding encumbrances in the general fund amounting to $438,023.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE - RQ-031
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAM
JUNE 30, 2018

Balance Sheet
Line Item Number

Description

Amount

Assets
111
113

Cash - unrestricted
Cash - other restricted

$

52,126
1,156

100

Total cash

$

53,282

Liabilities and equity
312

Account payable

6,196

347

Inter program due to

22,372

310

Total current liabilities

28,568

300

Total liabilities

28,568

509.3
512.3

Restricted fund balance
Unassigned fund balance

1,156
23,558

513

Total equity - net position

24,714

600

Total liabilities and equity

Equity

See notes to Financial Data Schedule.
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$

53,282

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE - RQ-031
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Income Statement
Line Item Number

Description

Amount

Revenues
70600
71100
71400

HUD PHA operating grants
Investment income - unrestricted
Fraud recovery

70000

Total revenues

$

251,481
191
814
252,486

Expenses
Administrative:
91100

Administrative salaries

91000

Total operating - administrative

97300

Housing assistance payments

220,327

90000

Total expenses

255,062

10000

Excess (deficiency) of total revenues over
(under) total expenses

See notes to Financial Data Schedule.
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$

34,735
34,735

$

(2,576)

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE - RQ-031
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Memo Account Information
11170

Administrative fee equity

$

23,558

11180

Housing assistance payments equity

$

1,156

11190

Unit months available

11210

Number of unit months leased

See notes to Financial Data Schedule.
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1,692
632

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS PROGRAM
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying Financial Data Schedule (“FDS”) is a trial balance of the financial statements of
the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program administered by the Municipality of Quebradillas.
The FDS was created in order to standardize the financial information reported (”REAC”), as required
by the Uniform Financial Reporting Standards (“UFRS”). REAC is the US Department of Housing
and Urban Development (“HUD”) national management center created to assess the condition of
HUD owned and assisted properties. The UFRS are rules to implement requirements of 24 CFR, Part
5, Subpart H, for the electronic filing of financial information to HUD. Because the FDS presents
only a selected portion of the operations of Municipality, it is not intended to, and does not present,
the financial position and changes in the net position of the Municipality.

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In accordance with the guidelines for reporting and attestation requirements of UFRS, the
accompanying FDS is included as information supplementary to the financial statements and is
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Direct Programs:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Pass-through Commissioner Office of Municipal Affairs Community Development Block Grant/State's Program
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) - Recovery
Act Funded
Pass-through Department of Family:
Emergency Shelter Grants Program (Prevention)
Subtotal U.S. Department of HUD
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through Education Department:
Child and Adult Care Food Program-Child Care
Child and Adult Care Food Program-Head Start
Subtotal U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. Department of Justice
Pass-through Justice Department:
Crime Victim Assistance
Subtotal U.S. Department of Justice
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Pass-through the Central Office of Recovery and Reconstruction of PR
- Governors Authorized Representative:
Disaster Grants – Public Assistance
Subtotal U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
Pass-through the Puerto Rico Governor's Office (Elderly Affairs
Office):
Special Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part C
Pass-through the Office of Administration for
Children and Families:
Child and Care and Development Block Grant
Pass-through the Office of Administration for
Children and Families:
Head Start
Early Head Start
Subtotal U.S. Department of HHS
TOTAL

Federal
CFDA
Number

14.871

Pass-Through
Entity Identifying
Number

Passed
Through
Subrecepient

Federal
Disbursements/
Expenditures

$

$

-

255,062

14.228

289,200

14.228

12,460

14.231

8,591
565,313

10.558
10.558

33,891
20,321
54,212

16.575

33,521
33,521

-

97.036

1,927,258
1,927,258

93.045

75,651

93.575

146,406

93.600
93.600

179,342
22,235
423,634
$

See notes to schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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$

3,003,938

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is a summary of the activity of the
Municipality of Quebradillas’s federal award programs presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The expenditures of the schedule are included in the Municipality’s basic financial statements. The
reconciliation of expenditures in the basic financial statements to the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is as follows:
Expenditures
Expenditures as per basic financial statements:
Federal expenditures included within:
Other governmental funds
Homeland Security Funds
Health and Human Services fund

$

653,046
1,927,258
423,634

Total

$

3,003,938

Total expenditures per schedule of expenditures
of federal awards

$

3,003,938

3. INDIRECT COST RATE
The Municipality did not elect to use the ten (10) percent of the minimum indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Municipal Legislature
Municipality of Quebradillas
Quebradillas, Puerto Rico
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Municipality of Quebradillas', as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 29, 2019. The report on the governmental activities was qualified
because the management has not recorded the deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net pension
liability, and has not recorded an expense for the current period change in that liability.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Municipality's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did identify certain deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be material weakness as item
2018-001.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001.
Municipality's Response to Findings
Municipality's response to the findings identified in my audit are described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs. Municipality's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

San Juan, Puerto Rico
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Honorable Mayor
and Municipal Legislature
Municipality of Quebradillas
Quebradillas, Puerto Rico
Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program
We have audited Municipality of Quebradillas' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Municipality's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. Municipality's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.
Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal program.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Municipality's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U. S. code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
the Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Municipality's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Municipality complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered Municipality's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Municipality's internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable or any other purpose.
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:
Opinion Unit

Type of Opinion

Government Wide Financial Statements
Governmental Funds Financial Statements
Business-Type Activities

Qualified
Unmodified
Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness (es) identified?
Reportable condition(s) identified
considered to be material weakness?

X
that

are

Yes

No

not
Yes

X

None
reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
X

Yes

No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness (es) identified?

Yes

Significant deficiency (is) identified?

Yes

X

X

No
None
reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Unmodified opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with the 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Yes

X

No

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers
97.036

Name of Federal Programs or Cluster
Disaster Grant-Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Audited qualified as low-risk auditee?
2.

Yes

X

No

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
•

2018-001 – Accounting Records – Recognition and Reporting of Net Pension Liability and
Postemployment Benefit Other Than Pensions - Material Weakness
Condition
The Municipality has not implemented the requirements of Statement No. 73 Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB
Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statement 67 and 68 and
Statement No.75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. The amount by which this departure would affect the deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position of the Municipality’s governmental
activities has not been determined.
Criteria
GASB Statement No. 73 state the accounting and financial reporting for defined benefit pensions
and defined contribution pensions that are provided to employees of the state and local
governmental employers and are not within the scope of Statement 68. This statement requires
that the Municipality report in its financial statements the net pension liability and related
expenses.
GASB Statement No. 75 state the accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions. This statement establishes
standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources and expenses /expenditures.
Cause
The government did not engage an actuarial firm to assist in determining the total pension liability
and related expenses
Effect
The Municipality’s Government-Wide Financial Statements does not present fairly the financial
position of the government activities, and changes in financial position of the Municipality.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Recommendation
We recommend the Municipality that they should engage an actuarial firm to determine the total
pension liability and related expense.
Management Response and Corrective Action
The Municipality it will be trying to obtain an actuarial firm to comply with these requirements.
3.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT
None
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF QUEBRADILLAS
SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR
AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The Municipality has no prior year findings and questioned costs to give follow up.
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